
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 
K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Governance Committee will be held as a Virtual – Online meeting on 
TUESDAY, 9TH JUNE, 2020 at 6.30 pm. 
 
Members of the Governance Committee Councillor Roome (Chair) 
 
Councillors Bushell, Campbell, Henderson, Jenkins, Luggar, Phillips, Topps, and Walker  
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Virtual Meetings Procedure - Briefing and Etiquette.   

 Chair to report. 
 

2.   Apologies for absence   

3.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10th March 
2020.  (Pages 7 - 14) 

4.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

5.   Declarations of Interests.   

 (Please complete the form provided at the meeting or telephone Corporate and 
Community Services to prepare a form for your signature before the meeting. 
Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors must leave 
the room if necessary.) 

 

6.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART A 

7.   Internal Audit Progress Report  (Pages 15 - 20) 

 Report by Devon Audit Partnership, (attached). 
 

8.   Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20  (Pages 21 - 36) 

 Report from Mazars, (attached). 
 

9.   External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update  (Pages 37 - 48) 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

 Report by Grant Thornton, (attached). 
 

10.   Audit Recommendation Tracker  (Pages 49 - 58) 

 Report by the Chief Executive, (attached). 
 

11.   Governance Work Programme 2020 - 21  (Pages 59 - 60) 

 To consider the work programme (attached). 
 

12.   Exclusion of Public and Press and Restriction of Documents   

PART B (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

1.06.20 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place and a reminder will be issued at the 
commencement of virtual meetings. 

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. In a virtual 
meeting the public will be excluded from the meeting while in Part B. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity. Public contributions to virtual meetings will be recorded, 
unless, at the Chair’s discretion, recording is deemed in appropriate in accordance 
with point 2 above. 

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
North Devon Virtual Meeting Protocol Found Here 
 



 
 

 
4 

 

For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk.



 
 

 
5 

 

 

Meeting Etiquette Reminder for Members  
 
Members are reminded to: 

 Join the meeting at least 10-15 minutes prior to the commencement to ensure that the 
meeting starts on time. 

 Behave as you would in a formal committee setting. 

 Address Councillors and officers by their full names. 

 Do not have Members of your household in the same room.  

 Be aware of what is in screen shot. 

 Mute your microphone when you are not talking. 

 Switch off video if you are not speaking. 

 Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair. 

 Speak clearly (if you are not using video then please state your name)  

 If you’re referring to a specific page, mention the page number. 

 Switch off your video and microphone after you have spoken. 

 The only person on video will be the Chair and the one other person speaking. 

 Only use the Chat function to register that you wish to speak or to move or second a 

motion. 

 

Virtual attendance by members of the public 

 

If members of the public wish to attend virtually, please contact Corporate and 

Community services on 01271 388253 or memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Governance Committee held at Barum Room - Brynsworthy 
on Tuesday, 10th March, 2020 at 6.00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Bushell, Henderson, Jenkins, Luggar, Phillips, Topps and 

Walker 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Head of Resources, (JT), Monitoring Officer and Senior Solicitor, 
(TB) and Head of Environmental Health and Housing, (JM) 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Mr Peter Barber, External Auditor from Grant Thornton, and 
Mr David Curnow, Internal Auditor, Deputy Head of Devon Audit 
Partnership 

 
   
 

55.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

No apologies for absence were received. 

56.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 7TH JANUARY 2020. 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 7th January 2020 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

57.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

The following declaration of interest was declared: 
 

Councillor Walker Item 16, Table D, declared a personal interest as 
she has a close family member on the Housing register. 

58.   REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Monitoring Officer regarding the Review 
of the Committee’s Terms of Reference (circulated previously). 
 
The Monitoring Officer presented the report to the Committee and confirmed that this 
was an annual report and that the Committee’s terms of reference required no 
change.   

59.   HALF YEARLY REPORT FROM THE CHAIR OF THE 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 

 
 

 
2 

 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

The Committee considered the Half Yearly Report of the Chair of the Governance 
Committee (circulated previously). 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted and proceed to Council for consideration. 

60.   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S EFFECTIVENESS. 
 

The Head of Resources confirmed that nine questionnaires had been sent to the 
Committee members in relation to the annual assessment of the effectiveness of the 
Governance Committee, (circulated previously).   
 
The Committee was nine months into a new term so it was valid that there were 
answers of ‘don’t know’ as a full cycle of the Committee had not yet been completed. 
 
Five of the questionnaires had been returned and the Head of Resources gave 
further explanations to some of the answers given as follows: 
 
With regards to answers given under the Establishment, Operation and 
Duties section, Role and Remit; 

 The Governance Committee does make a formal report to Council 
detailing its work, on a half yearly basis 

 The Committee received regular updates from Grant Thornton in 
relation to topical legal and regulatory issues 

 There was an opportunity for members to meet, (with no Officers 
present), with the Head of Internal Audit and External Auditors prior 
to the Committee and this meeting could be reinstated if so required 

 The Chief Financial Officer does assess the performance of external 
audit via an independent assessor. 

 
Membership, induction and training; 

 It was a statutory requirement that new Governance Committee 
members received an induction and appropriate training 

 All training had been provided 
 
Financial Reporting and Regulatory matters; 

 A full cycle of the Committee had not yet taken place but that a 
review of management’s letter of representation was carried out as 
part of the conclusion of the audit process 

 

61.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT. 
 

The Committee considered a report by MAZARS Public Sector Internal Audit Limited 
regarding the Internal Audit progress report March 2020, (circulated previously). 
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee of the following in relation to the 
Internal Audit Progress report: 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 

 
 

 
3 

 

 The 17 audits in the 2018/19 plan were now all complete 

 There were 18 audits in the 2019/20 plan, four of which would not be 
completed by the end of March 2020 

 Two final reports had been issued on the Business Continuity 
2018/19 and Treasury Management 2019/20.  

 There was a robust plan moving forwards into 2020/21 under the 
new arrangement with Devon Audit Partnership 

 
In response to a question the Head of Resources advised that Mazars 
would not be paid the full internal audit fee for 2019/20 as a proportion of 
the plan would not be completed. 
 
The Deputy Head of the Devon Audit Partnership introduced himself and 
assured the Committee that their firm had a resilient staffing level with a 
wide pool of skill sets.  40 staff were available to carry out audit duties with 
a set number focussing on North Devon to become familiar with North 
Devon Council. 
 
 

62.   INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020-21 
 

The Committee considered a report, North Devon Council Internal Audit Plan 2020-
21, (circulated previously). 
 
The Internal Auditor, Mr Curnow, advised that the Internal Audit Plan 2020-21 was 
based on: 
 

 23 identified areas and associated Corporate risks 

 National Fraud Initiative was an annual review as well us duties of 
the Crematorium 

 A new risk added to this plan was Climate change which would be 
audited by means of looking at the Authority’s response to climate 
change initiatives. 

 Cyber audits could be a two to three year piece of work 

 Council tax and benefits was being looked at within areas such as 
discounts 

 The plan was likely to respond and change throughout the year 
 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Plan 2020-21 be approved. 

63.   INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY. 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Devon Audit Partnership regarding the 
Internal Audit Strategy, (circulated previously). 
 
Mr Curnow of the Devon Audit Partnership gave the following update to Committee: 
 

 The strategy set out how the audit was to be delivered 

 The scope of the audit 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 

 
 

 
4 

 

 What the audit objectives were 

 Build up an overall opinion on the framework 

 Findings to be presented at the end of the year in the annual report 
 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Strategy be noted. 

64.   INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER. 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Devon Audit Partnership regarding the 
Internal Audit Charter, (circulated previously). 
 
Mr Curnow of the Devon Audit Partnership gave the Committee an update as 
follows: 
 

 The Charter was a document setting out how the Devon Audit 
Partnership would deliver their audit 

 It was known as their terms of reference document, setting out who 
reports to whom, accountability, responsibilities and their 
professional relationship 

 There was an annual requirement for the Charter to be refreshed. 
 
The Chair of the Committee thanked Mr Curnow for his update and welcomed 
working with the Devon Audit Partnership. 
 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Charter be noted. 

65.   ORDER OF AGENDA 
 

RESOLVED that items 14 and 15 be considered ahead of item 13. 

66.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
Progress report and Sector Update, (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor, Peter Barber, highlighted the following: 
 

 The external auditors would be visiting North Devon Council in the 
next month as part of the interim audit 

 Last year had been the hardest year experienced in terms of meeting 
obligations due to changes in regulations and staff losses 

 The draft accounts were due to be received in May 

 The final accounts were due to be audited in July but the auditors 
were in dialogue with the Council early as this deadline was not 
going to be achieved by Grant Thornton 

 Grant Thornton would be providing narrative explaining reasons for 
the late submission of the final audit 

 The recent Brydon review related to all auditors and calls for a review 
of the auditing process something which Grant Thornton supported 

 The Minister for Housing, Communities and Local Government had 
last July announced that a review of public sector audits was to be 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 

 
 

 
5 

 

undertaken to determine whether current audit arrangements were 
“fit for purpose” 

 The detail and size of accounts was growing and this led to the lay 
person not engaging or reading documents as a 300 plus page 
document on some councils accounts was off putting 

 
In response to a question about why the auditing of accounts couldn’t be done using 
Artificial Intelligence, Mr Barber explained that the complex code of practice for Local 
Authorities as well as each Local Authority being different meant this could not be 
used. 
 
In response to a question about what Grant Thornton were doing to recruit new staff, 
Mr Barber replied that the Company was doing all it could which included national 
recruitment adverts. 
 
RESOLVED that the External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update be noted.  

67.   EXTERNAL AUDIT SCOPE AND ADDITIONAL WORK LETTER 
2019/20 
 

The Committee considered the External Audit Scope and Additional Work Letter 
2019/20 from Grant Thornton, (circulated previously). 
 
The external auditor, Mr Barber, explained the following: 
 

 The purpose of the letter was to explain the additional works to be 
undertaken and costs involved with that to be charged in 2019/20 

 The proposal was an uplift of fee, last year’s additional fee was 
£4,500 and the proposal for 2019/20 was an additional fee of £7,500 
over and above the scale fee which was subject to ratification and 
sign off 

 
In response to a question about whether a penalty clause could be added to ensure 
timely delivery of works Mr Barber advised that the contract was regulated by the 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA).  North Devon Council were in a 
five year contract currently and Grant Thornton were attempting to discharge their 
duties efficiently. 
 
The Head of Resources added that it was a difficult situation but that the cost of the 
fees in total was overall less than the Authority were paying three years ago. 
 
In relation to staff shortages over the summer months it had been decided to push 
the planned external audit to September 2020 when a concentrated period of two-
three weeks would be set aside to focus on the final accounts. 
 
RESOLVED that the External Audit Scope and Additional Work Letter 2019/20 be 
noted. 

68.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 

 
 

 
6 

 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
Plan 2019/20, (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor, Mr Barber, highlighted the following: 
 

 Pension liability was looked at in greater detail and this was a large 
area of work to be undertaken 

 The materiality was set at £1.1- million for the Authority which 
equated to 2% of the prior year gross expenditure for the year.  North 
Devon Council were considered a low risk. 

 A new risk identified was International Financial Reporting Standard 
(IFRS) 16 Leases.  

 
RESOLVED that the External Audit Plan for 2019/20 be noted. 

69.   AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER. 
 

The Committee considered the Audit Recommendation Tracker report by the Chief 
Executive, (circulated previously), in respect of actions taken to address internal and 
external audit recommendations. 
 
The Committee noted the following updates: 
 

 No recommendations had been included in table B 
(recommendations completed since the last meeting of the 
Governance Committee) 

 Table C detailed 3 recommendations for which time extensions were 
being requested.  Recommendation 16 PL 03 S106 was requesting 
an extension to date as this software module was still being worked 
on.  Requests, 17 RM&CG 02 and 19 CG&RM 01 were seeking 
extensions to 31st March 2020 

 
Councillor Walker declared a personal interest in relation to information on 
Table D. 
 

 Table D detailed 1 outstanding recommendation, 15 HN (CBL) 01, 
which the Head of Environmental Health and Housing confirmed had 
actually now been completed 

 Recommendation 14 AGS 02 was reliant on other recommendations 
being completed 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the extensions to timescales requested in the Audit 
Recommendation Tracker  be approved; and 

 
(b) That the Audit Recommendation Tracker be noted 

70.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 10 March 2020 

 
 

 
7 

 

The Committee considered the work programme for 2019/20 (circulated previously). 
 
RESOLVED that the work programme for 2019/20 be noted. 

71.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS AND RESTRICTION OF 
DOCUMENTS 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item 
as it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended 
from time to time), namely information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information). 

 
(b) That, all documents and reports relating to the item be confirmed as 

“Not for Publication”. 

72.   CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 

The Committee considered the Corporate Risk register, report by the Chief 
Executive, (circulated previously). 
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that the Corporate Risk Group had 
updated the associated risks.  Each was shown with updated notes. 
 
There had been one risk deleted as the Local Plan had now been adopted. 
 
There had been one new risk added in relation to pandemic influenza. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee the Head of Environmental Health and 
Housing confirmed that: 
 

 Hand sanitizers and hand washing instructions had been emailed to 
all staff and posters were displayed around the building 

 The authority was following guidelines set out by Public Health 
England 

 
RESOLVED that the Corporate Risk Register be noted. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 8.25 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

    

   

Internal Audit  

Update Note 

 Internal Audit Approach 
during the Covid-19 
pandemic 

 

   

 
 

 

 
North Devon District Council 

 

 
  

 

  
 

 

 
May 2020 

 
Official 

 

   

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
 

 
Devon Audit Partnership 
 
Internal Audit approach during Covid 19 
 
Update note for North Devon District Council Governance Committee Members 
 
 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 In these extremely testing times we wanted to briefly update the Governance Committee members on how we 

(Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) – the providers of the Internal Audit function) - are looking to adjust our ways 
of working, to help deliver our work, in particular the 2020/21 Internal Audit plan, and how we aim to provide 
wider support to organisations as they respond to challenges brought by Covid-19. 

 
 
2. Helping our Partners and Clients respond to Covid-19 
 
2.1 As a reminder, all DAP staff are Devon County Council (DCC) employees; Devon (like other Authorities) has 

sought volunteers to assist front line service delivery.  We know DAP is not a “front line” service and therefore 
our staff could be well placed to assist with requests for help. We do not yet know what roles we may be asked 
to complete but I am sure that any support we can provide will be helpful. 

 
2.2 The guidance from Phil Norrey (Chief Executive of Devon) has said:- 

“…other….. partner organisations may require staff to volunteer to support their work such as drivers and 
customer call handling, and we are currently bringing this information together”.  
As a consequence, our staff who are based in locations around Devon (e.g. Plymouth, Torbay, Tiverton, etc) 
may be best allocated to help those organisations. 

 
2.4 Our Immediate Response: - 
 

• We have prepared a skills / availability matrix of all DAP staff for the purposes of deployment to other 
priority services for all our partners.  Some staff have already been deployed; 
 

• We have been informed of, and have identified, a range of activities from across our client and partner 
organisations where workarounds to normal business practices are required in response to Covid-19; for 
example, procurement practices, payments for adult and children’s social care and purchasing cards etc.  
It is our intention to be proactive in providing input, advice and assurance to services on any proposed 
changes; 

 

• Working with colleagues in other teams to support them as they respond to the challenges brought by 
Covid-19. For example, work with DCC Procurement regarding payments to contractors where services 
may be delayed / not provided and administering business grant relief payments. 

 
2.5 Ongoing Support: - 
 

• Head of Partnership has taken on role as Head of Devon CC Food Cell;   

• Other DAP staff are supporting this through a wide range of issues including: 
o establishing needs around food supplies for smaller Care Homes; 
o liaising with supermarkets and other providers; 
o assisting the “Shielded”; and  
o working with voluntary sector organisations.  

 
2.6 DAP staff have been deployed in different roles e.g. Supporting HR, Business Grants Processing, DCC Call 

centre – at time of writing 5 staff have been subject to such deployment. Work undertaken to date, specific to 
North Devon has been limited so far:- 

 

• advice on business grant payments and related test checking and potential fraud. We are preparing some 

post payment audit assurance testing in line with BEIS guidelines as these develop. We are also 

preparing audit programmes for post event assurance testing of key risks that may apply to the Council. 

 

• we are available for advice and guidance on change procedures for emergency processes, risk 

management, counter fraud review and direct support to front line services where required. 

  Page 16

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
 

2.7 We remain alert to the Council’s emergency procedures and associated control environment assurance 
needs; we are well placed to support and, ensure sound and effective arrangement are in place to deal with 
the current crisis.  

 
2.8 We encourage officers to contact us when proposing changes to systems; if they have any concerns about 

what they are doing, are anxious about the risk of fraud or just want assurance that what they are planning is 
suitably robust. The DAP team are all working from home at this time, but have excellent IT comms, make 
good use of Skype, Teams etc. and are therefore readily contactable. 

 
 

3 Internal Audit Response 
 
3.1 We are very aware that we need to provide an annual assurance opinion at the end of 2020/21. We anticipate 

that there will be challenges in completing the 2020/21 audit plan in our traditional manner, and so have 
developed different practices to enable us to deliver our assurance. This will include confirmation of key 
controls, remote testing wherever possible of these controls (so as not to disturb / disrupt operational staff) 
and using data analytics generated from system data.  This approach has been discussed (and agreed) with 
your S151 officer and the DAP Management Board. 

 
3.2 In more detail we have reviewed our approach to the provision of Internal Audit and are developing this new  

Model to adapt to the COVID 19 restrictions on normal operations (see info graphics below): - 
 

 
 
3.3 The focus of this model is on assurance mapping, underpinned by the well-known and recognised ‘3 lines of 

defence model’ to build a more in-depth view of the risk and control framework in operation. Our plan is to 
build this map and model from our existing knowledge base and access levels supported by a much-reduced 
contact with client staff. This work will be our focus in early part of the year covering key financial systems and 
other areas within the audit plan that can support this engagement. This will not result in the usual and 
frequent issue of audit reports but produce a wider risk and control framework image. 

 
3.4 This model can then be supported by less intrusive testing through data analytics, which we will also need to 

develop to support this model. As services return to normal operation during the year, we will take this 
assurance framework through to more specific audit reviews and more familiar reporting arrangements to 
provide assurance in line with the audit plan. 

 
3.5 This info graphic also includes improvement and development opportunities for our service delivery which we 

will work on to further enhance service efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
3.6 Completion of 2019/20 work. 
 

• 2019/20 Internal Audit work was undertaken by Mazars. Work completed will inform the Annual Audit 
Report that they produce. Planned work not completed will transfer to DAP to undertake.  

 Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
 

• We understand that key financial systems work has been completed to inform the audit opinion. Audit 
working papers and reports have been passed over to DAP under a hold harmless agreement. The 
reports and working papers will assist in understanding of systems, processes and controls. We are not 
able to rely on these working papers for opinion purposes though none-the-less they will be useful. We will 
undertake our own assurance work. 

• The former Audit Manager has TUPE’d across to DAP and will continue work on NDDC audit and inform 
and lead a team of audit staff in undertaking audit work for the new year.  

 
3.7 Undertaking the agreed plans for 2020/21 
 

• 2020/21 Internal Audit Plans – Work will be undertaken as outlined above.  “Traditional” audit work is unlikely 
to be effective during this time and we recognise that tying up key staff is unlikely to be welcomed.  Our 
approach is to firstly identify areas within the audit plan where we have remote access to information and are 
likely to need minimal officer input. This approach will allow us to start 2020/21 work with minimal client 
disruption. We will continue to liaise closely with management to ensure that we deliver the audit assignments 
detailed within the audit plan as efficiently as possible.  

• We expect the audit plan to require flexible amendment to accommodate additional testing of exceptional / 
emergency payments and processes e.g. business grant relief and will work with management in the first 
place to agree how this will be incorporated or added to the audit plan. 

 
3.8 External Audit  
 
3.8.1 It should be noted that our External Audit colleagues look to the work of Internal Audit when determining their 

work and the resources for that work. If the Internal Audit plan was adversely affected by Covid-19, and the 
2020/21 Internal Audit opinion caveated due to lack of coverage, then External Audit may need to reconsider 
their plan, their resources and, ultimately, the cost of their services to the Council.  Therefore, it is important 
that we stay on track to deliver our plan; despite the challenges outlined above we remain confident that we 
can complete our work and provide the level of assurance the Governance Committee requires and help 
External Audit in completing their tasks. 

 

 
4 Counter Fraud. 
 

• Counter-fraud staff continue to work on referrals until such time as they are deployed into other roles. 

• Advice, guidance and consultancy continues. 

• Progressing investigations as far as possible in the absence of face to face interviews and court 
proceedings taking place. 

 
4.1 The Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) have put in place a process by which we 

can flag to you potentially fraudulent behaviour that is brought to their attention. They require a nominated 
individual from within the Local Authority that can be a point of contact on potential fraud. Ken Johnson, DAP 
Counter Fraud Team Manager has been nominated as champion at Plymouth and an offer has been made to 
other partners for same. 

 
5 DAP Development 
 
5.1 DAP continues to:- 

• Review and develop its approach (see model above). 

• Contributing to a national horizon scanning exercise to understanding what Internal Audit can do further 
(from a professional practice viewpoint) to support the organisation at this time (both for the organisations 
short and, long term plans).  

• Help staff adjust to new ways of working, including MS Teams becoming the lynchpin of getting things 
done. 

 
5.2 We have identified a range of service development activities that staff will work on without impacting our 

clients – a particular example of this is the use of data analytics to help provide some oversight of large data 
sets / transactions at a time where the control environment may be reduced; 

 
5.3 Staff have been asked to complete Personal Development Objectives and any required records for CPD for 

their professional institutes and ensure that they are up to date with the Host Authority's E-Learning 
requirements. 

 
5.4 Reviewing the suite of training material that we deliver to the Governance Committees and staff at partner 

organisations. 
 
 
 Page 18

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
 

6 Impact on the Council and DAP 
 
6.1 19/20 Audit Opinion 
 
6.1.1 DAP will consider the opinion of the former internal auditors Mazars in their Annual Internal Audit report.   
 
6.2 Delivering in 20/21  
 
6.2.1 As outlined above we will undertake 2020/21 Internal Audit work as best we can with the expectation that we 

will be able to provide an annual audit opinion, albeit with an expected reduction in direct client contact and 
under our alternate model. This will be a particular challenge to us this year where we have no prior assurance 
work that we can rely on for NDDC. We will liaise closely with Head of Resources (S151 Officer) to gain the 
best perspective possible in our assurance work. 

 
6.2.2 Audit plans for our partners may suffer from some reduction. We would normally expect to complete one 

quarter of our plan by end of June, but completion in this first quarter may well be impacted (for example by 
staff deployment to Covid-19, some audit work being deferred etc). Whilst we would, ideally, like to make up 
lost time in the rest of the year this may not be achievable, though we still aim and expect to provide a 
balanced audit opinion. We recommend that the Internal Audit plan for 2020/21 be reviewed at the end of Q1. 

 
6.3 Budget issues 
 
6.3.1 DAP management and the Board recognise that Covid-19 presents financial challenges to the Partnership in 

respect of the level of external work expected to be achieved.  We shall closely monitor the situation and take 
effective (proactive and reactive) action to minimise any negative financial impact. 

 
 
7 Conclusion 
 
7.1 Covid-19 presents significant challenges to organisations; DAP is adapting to the ever changing and 

developing situation to ensure that Internal Audit assurance continues to be provided and assists in meeting 
the Covid-19 challenge as effectively and efficiently as possible. 

 
7.2 We are advising and supporting wherever possible but have recognised that we will need to deliver our work in 

different ways. 
 
7.3 We have made the whole team (from Head of Partnership to apprentice) available to support our partners and 

we will manage the impact of this. 
 
7.4 We are managing our resources to ensure that the financial impact of Covid-19 on DAP is controlled and 

minimised.  
 
 
 

  
Robert Hutchins    
Head of Devon Audit Partnership    
May 2020 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

North Devon District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 

 
May 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 13. 

  

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8



 North Devon District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20  

Contents 
Introduction ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Key Themes Identified ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Appendix 1 - Audit Projects with Limited and Nil Assurance 2019/20 ............................................................................................................................................. 8 

Appendix 2 - Key to Assurance Levels .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix 3 – Summary of the Annual Operational Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 ........................................................................................................................... 11 

Statement of Responsibility ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

This report (“Report”) was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of North Devon District Council and terms for the preparation and scope of the Report have been agreed with them. The matters 

raised in this Report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided in this Report is as 

accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation provided and consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this Report 

is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  

This Report was prepared solely for the use of North Devon District Council and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third 

party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification. Accordingly, any reliance 

based on the report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.  

 

Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility at the end of this Report for further information about responsibilities, limitations and confidentiality

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
1 

 

Introduction 
Purpose of this Report 

This report summarises the work that Internal Audit has undertaken and the key control environment themes identified across North Devon District Council (the 
Council) during 2019/20, the service for which was provided by Mazars LLP. 

The purpose of the Annual Internal Audit Report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit (HOIA) annual reporting requirements set out in the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  The PSIAS requirements are that the report must include: 

• An annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, risk and control framework (the control 
environment); 

• A summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived (including reliance placed on the work by other assurance bodies); and 

• A statement on conformation with the PSIAS and the results of the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP), if applicable. 

The report should also include: 

• The disclosure of any qualifications to that opinion, together with reasons for the qualification; 

• The disclosure of any impairments or restriction in scope; 

• A comparison of the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned and a summary of the performance of the internal audit function against its 
performance measures and targets; 

• Any issues judged to be particularly relevant to the preparation of the annual governance statement, and 

• Progress against any improvement plans resulting from QAIP external assessment. 

It should be noted that the Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money 
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act to 
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which it functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of the Authority’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

Overview of Internal Audit Approach 

As Internal Audit, our role is to provide an annual assurance statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
2 

 

Overview of Work Done 

The Audit Plan for 2019/20 included 18 internal audit projects, which due to various factors including resourcing constraints, the contract ending on 31 March 
2020 and the impact of Coronavirus pandemic (Covid-19) was reduced to 11.  However, together with the 9 audits from 2018/19 that were finalised after the last 
Internal Audit Annual Report in August 2019, we consider sufficient work has been conducted to provide the enclosed HOIA opinion. We have liaised with senior 
management throughout the year regarding the factors impacting on delivery and to ensure that internal audit work undertaken continues to focus on the high 
risk areas in order to ensure the most appropriate use of our resources. 

We generally undertake individual internal audit projects with the overall objective of providing Members, the Chief Executive and other officers with reasonable, 
but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the key controls over a number of management’s objectives.  Other audit projects are 
geared more towards the provision of specific advice and support to management to enhance the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the services and 
functions for which they are responsible.  We also undertake IT audits, probity audits and anti-fraud work.  All internal audit work was performed in compliance 
with the PSIAS. 

All internal audit reports include our recommendations and agreed actions that, if implemented by management, will enhance the control environment and the 
operation of the key management controls. 

Compliance with the PSIAS 

During our internal audit work we practice the principles of the PSIAS. The PSIAS require periodic self-assessment and an assessment by an external person 
every five years. Our self-assessment with the PSIAS is complete. 

The outcome of this external assessment is stated within the resulting report as:- 

“From the evidence reviewed as part of the external quality assessment, no areas of noncompliance with the public sector internal audit standards have been 
identified that would affect the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity, nor any significant areas of partial non-compliance.  

On this basis, it is our opinion that Mazars GRIC - Public Services conforms to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 
the Local Government Application Note.” 

This report sets out the results of the work performed as follows: 

• Overall summary of work performed by Internal Audit including an analysis of report gradings; and 

• Key themes identified during our work in 2019/20. 

In this report, we have drawn on the findings and assessments included in all internal audit reports issued in 2019/20, including those that, at this time, remain 
in draft.  It should be noted therefore that the comments made in respect of any draft reports are still subject to management response. 

  

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
3 

 

Overall Summary 
As illustrated in the tables below, based on the au dit work performed the overall assurance levels of assignments are broadly similar year on year. 
During 2019/20, 8 out of 11 internal audit projects , where an assurance rating was relevant, were rate d ‘Substantial Assurance’ compared with 10 
out of 18 in the prior year.  In 2019/20, 2 were ra ted with ‘Full Assurance’, in comparison with 3 in the prior year.  We have not issued any ‘Limited 
Assurance’ or ‘Nil Assurance’ reports during 2019/2 0 but had issued 3 ‘Limited Assurance’ and 1 ‘Nil A ssurance’ opinions during 2018/19.  One audit 
report (Follow up) does not provide an opinion.   

Report Ratings 

As in 2018/19, we have noted areas of improvement throughout the Council.  The financial audit reports were all issued with a ‘Substantial Assurance’, except 
for Treasury Management which had a ‘Full Assurance’.  The overall number of recommendations contained in 2019/20 reports was 24 compared to 36 in 
2018/19 reports. 

 

 Number of Projects 

Assurance Gradings 2019/20 2018/19 

Full 2 20% 3* 17.5% 

Substantial 4 40% 10* 59% 

Limited 0 0% 3* 17.5% 

Nil 0 0% 1* 6% 

Still in Draft (all assessed as Substantial) 4 40% 0 0% 

Sub-Total 10  17  

Merged Audits / No Opinion Audits 1  1  

Total Audits Delivered 11  18  

Audits Cancelled / Deferred (HR, Housing Needs, New Housing Schemes, Building 
Control, Performance Management, Safeguarding, IT) 

7  0  

Total 18  18  

 

  

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
4 

 

* 2018/19 audits where report was issued during 2019/20 from which we are taking assurance:   

Efficiency savings Full 

Waste Management (Refuse and Recycling) Substantial 

Regeneration Projects Full 

Business Continuity Nil 

Civil Contingencies Plan Limited 

Fraud, Bribery & Ethics National Fraud 
Initiative 

Limited 

VAT Substantial 

Crematorium Full 

Follow Up N/A 

 P
age 26

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
5 

 

Opinion 2019/20 

From the Internal Audit work undertaken in compliance with the PSIAS in 2019/20, it is our opinion that we can provide Substantial Assurance that the system 
of internal control in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 accords with proper practice, except for Business Continuity management where a 
Nil assurance grading was issued, see details in Appendix 1.  The assurance can be further broken down between financial and non-financial systems, as 
follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Our overall opinion is that internal controls 
within operational systems operating 
throughout the year are fundamentally sound. 

ASSURANCE - 

NON-FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

 
Our overall opinion is that internal controls 
within financial systems operating throughout 
the year are fundamentally sound. 

ASSURANCE - 

FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
6 

 

Key Themes Identified 
As Internal Audit continues to apply a risk based a pproach, our audit projects assess the governance f ramework, the risk management process as 
well as the effectiveness of controls across a numb er of areas.  Our findings on these themes are set out below.  Overall, we have seen a consistent 
level of assurances across the control environment and whilst further remedial action needs to take pl ace, we have noted that management continue 
to address our most significant findings. 

Corporate Governance 

As part of our work this year, we have again completed an evaluation of the governance arrangements in order to assist the Council and the S.151 officer in 
the preparing the Annual Governance Statement for 2019/20. 

As in 2018/19, we have concluded that there is reasonable assurance that the Council’s governance arrangements are largely compliant with the good practice 
guidance on corporate governance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE.  This opinion is based on: 

• The external auditor’s annual audit letter 2018/19 (dated 19 July 2019), where no significant weaknesses in the internal control arrangements were identified, 
and 

• Our audit of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements that provided an overall Substantial Assurance rating. 

Risk Management 

Based on an internal audit of the Council’s risk management framework, we have concluded that there is reasonable assurance that the Council’s risk 
management processes are sufficiently formalised and provide information on key risks and issues relating to directorates and the Council as a whole.  We 
found there are processes for identification, recording, and reporting risks, controls, and to help identify action plans to mitigate risks to an acceptable level.  
The audit provided an overall Substantial Assurance rating, and we have raised recommendations to further enhance and embed risk management processes. 

Internal Control - Key Financial Systems 

Each year Internal Audit carries out audit projects of the Council’s key financial systems, working in accordance with the managed audit process agreed with 
the external auditors. 

The control environment around key financial systems is similar to 2018/19 with all financial audit reports continuing to have substantial assurance, except 
Treasury Management which was given a Full Assurance. 

  

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
7 

 

Performance of Internal Audit 

At the start of the contract, a number of performance indicators were formulated to monitor the delivery of the Internal Audit service to the Council.  The table 
below shows the actual and targets for each indicator for the period: 

Performance Measure Target Actual 

A close out meeting to be held for each audit 100% 100% 

Average period between the close out meeting and issue of the draft report   10 days 28.2 days * 

Average period between the receipt of final management responses and issue of the final report  10 days 2.2 days 

 
* Performance in this metric was impacted by the absence and personal issues of the Engagement Manager, of which the Council were aware.  

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
8 

 

Appendix 1 - Audit Projects with Limited and Nil Assurance 2019/20 
There were no ‘Limited Assurance ‘or ‘Nil Assurance’ reports issued in 2019/20 from the 2019/20 Audit Plan but the following audits from the 2018/19 Audit 
Plan were finalised during the 2019/20 year and were not included in our 2018/19 Annual Internal Audit Report. 
 

Project Grading Summary of Key Findings 

Business Continuity Nil 

 

 
 

Business Continuity Policy and Plan 

Examination of the Business Continuity Management (BCM) Policy and Business Continuity Incident Management 
(BCIM) Plan noted that both were dated July 2016 and that there was a requirement to review both in June 2017.  No 
evidence of any review was evident.  
Resilience Direct user access 

Discrepancies between those individuals with access to Resilience Direct and those identified as owners of Service 
Resumption Plans were identified, including no access for four key officers and access still being in place for a former 
senior Council officer. 
Service Resumption Plans 

We noted that the 11 Service Resumption Plans were all dated 2016 with a requirement for review in 2017 but no such 
review was evident. 
Testing of Service Resumption Plans 

Examination of the Service Resumption Plans confirmed that these had not been reviewed or updated to include any 
findings from any test, not did these record a test as having been completed.  There were no records of tests / exercises 
on Resilience Direct. 

Civil Contingencies 
Plan 

Limited 

 

 
 

Emergency Incident Plans 

The Major Incident Response and Recovery Plan was produced in January 2016 and included a requirement for it to 
be reviewed annually, or as a result of any recommendations arising as a result of an incident / exercise. No review or 
update of the plan was evident. 

The Small Rest Centre Plan was produced in January 2015 and was required to be updated following any incident or 
exercise, or within three years of the date of the plan, yet no review or update was evident. 

The Standby Manual, dated January 2018, showed changes from a previous version but had not been updated to 
reflect the details for Councillor changes from the May 2019 election. 
Silver Team Details 

We established that the Council’s Silver Team contact details was dated November 2015 and contained out of date 
information. 
Resilience Direct 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
9 

 

Project Grading Summary of Key Findings 

We noted that the Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Resilience Forum (CAERP) emergency plan was not held in the 
folders within Resilience Direct, neither was the Devon County Council or Local Resilience Forum (LRF) plans relevant 
to the Council. 
Exercise Shark 

We established that whilst the Council completed Exercise Shark on 14 March 2019 and the Adler & Allan Ltd report 
on the exercise concluded that there was a positive ability to respond to an incident, it identified some areas of 
improvement to be made but as the lessons learnt from the exercise had not been fed into the Major Incident Response 
& Recovery Plan as it had not been reviewed and updated.  

Fraud, Bribery & 
Ethics  

Limited 

 

Service Risk Registers 

It was identified that 9 of the 15 Red RAG rated service risks detailed in the Pentana system were recorded as last 
being assessed in 2017. 

Monitoring Fraud awareness e-learning 

The Council has a fraud awareness e-learning module which is mandatory for all employees, who have not received 
any other training.  We noted that the Exchequer Manager is required to issue an email reminder to all staff requesting 
those who had not competed the training to do so but this had not been done since December 2017. 

Documented Procedures  

We requested details of any detailed procedures for the actual conduct of investigations, but these were not received 
therefore we concluded that these did not exist. 

Reporting Management Information 

We requested evidence to support that periodic reports are produced which summarise the numbers of irregularities 
referred, nature of these irregularities, outcome of the investigations and actions taken, but none was received so it 
was concluded that such reports did not exist.  

  

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
10 

 

Appendix 2 - Key to Assurance Levels 
Assurance Gradings  

We have four categories by which we classify internal audit assurance over the processes we examine, and these are defined as follows: 

Assurance Level Evaluating and Testing Conclusion 

 Full There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the Council’s objectives 

The control processes tested are being consistently applied. 

 Substantial While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there are weaknesses, which put some of the Council’s objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the control processes may put some of the Council’s objectives at 

risk. 

 Limited Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to put the Council’s objectives at risk. 

The level of non-compliance puts the Council’s objectives at risk. 

 Nil Control processes are generally weak leaving the processes/systems open to significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-compliance with basic control processes leaves the processes/systems open to error or abuse. 

Recommendation Gradings 

In order to assist management in using our internal audit reports, we categorise our recommendations according to their level of priority as follows: 

Priority Level Definition 

1 
  

Major issues for the attention of senior management and the Governance Committee. 

2 

 

Important issues to be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 

  

3 

 

Minor issues resolved on site with local management. 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
11 

 

Appendix 3 – Summary of the Annual Operational Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
 

 Audit Title Proposed 
Quarter 

Planned 
Days 

Anticipated 
Risk Level Assurance 

Priority 
One 

Priority 
Two 

Priority 
Three 

Status 

1 Council Tax and NNDR Q2 15 Medium Substantial  0 1 1 Final Report 17 March 2020. 

2 Housing Benefits Q2 10 Medium Substantial  0 1 1 Final Report issued 23 April 2020. 

3 Payroll Q1 10 Medium Substantial  0 0 1 Final Report issued 6 April 2020. 

4 Debtors Q1 8 Medium Substantial  0 2 2 Final Report Issued 27 February 2020. 

5 Treasury Management Q1 8 Medium Full 0 0 0 Final Report 11 February 2020. 

6 Corporate Governance 
and Risk Management 

Q3 10 Medium Substantial 0 3 2 Draft Report 

7 Human Resources Q3 10 Medium N/A    ** 

8 Main Accounting 
System and Budgetary 
Control 

Q3 12 High Substantial 0 0 2 Draft Report 

9 Housing Needs Q3 10 Medium N/A    ** 

10 New Housing Schemes Q4 10 Medium N/A    ** 

11 Building Control Q4 10 Medium N/A    ** 

12 CCTV** Q4 8 Medium Substantial 0 1 2 Draft Report 

13 Contracts & Capital 
Expenditure 

Q4 10 High Substantial 0 5 0 Draft Report 

14 Performance 
Management 

Q4 10 Medium N/A    ** 

15 Safeguarding Q3 8 Low N/A    ** 

16 Follow Up Q4 10 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Draft Report 

17 Crematorium Q4 3 N/A Full 0 0 0 Final Report issued 7 April 2020 

18 IT  Q4 22 High N/A    ** 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
12 

 

 Audit Title Proposed 
Quarter 

Planned 
Days 

Anticipated 
Risk Level Assurance 

Priority 
One 

Priority 
Two 

Priority 
Three 

Status 

 Audit Management  22 N/A N/A     

 Total   206   0 13 11  

 
** Audit not conducted due to resource constraints, the contract ending and Covid-19.  
 

 

  

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 8



 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 
13 

 

Statement of Responsibility 
 
We take responsibility to North Devon District Council for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. 
 
The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with 
management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the system of internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under 
review with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this area are managed. 
 
We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone should 
not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Even sound 
systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement 
of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact 
before they are implemented. The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application 
of sound management practices. 

This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the 
Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk. 

Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 0C308299. 
 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit Progress Report 

North Devon District Council

Year ending 31 March 2020

9 June 2020

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2020

Public

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at 9 June 2020 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Results of Audit Interim work 6

2

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2020

Public

This paper provides the Governance Committee with a report on progress in 

delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

Members of the Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section 

dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications 

www.grantthornton.co.uk.

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Audit Manager.

Introduction

3

Peter Barber 

Engagement Lead

T:  0117 305 7897

E: Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Andrew Davies

Audit Manager

T: 0117 305 7844

E: andrew.davies@uk.gt.com

PSAA Contract Monitoring
North Devon District Council opted into the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Appointing Person scheme which starts with the 2018/19 audit. PSAA appointed Grant Thornton as 

auditors. PSAA is responsible under the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 for monitoring compliance with the contract and is committed to ensuring good quality audit 

services are provided by its suppliers. Details of PSAA’s audit quality monitoring arrangements are available from its website, www.psaa.co.uk.

Our contract with PSAA contains a method statement which sets out the firm’s commitment to deliver quality audit services, our audit approach and what clients can expect from us.

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 9

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2020

Public

Progress at June 2020

4

Financial Statements Audit

Our planning commenced in January 2020, this is an 

ongoing, iterative process informed by our meetings 

with officers, review of key Council minutes and 

developments within the sector.

We set out the audit risks from the audit in our Audit 

Plan and our proposed testing to address each of the 

risks identified. Our detailed Audit Plan was presented 

in March 2020.

Since presenting our Audit Plan we have reviewed our 

risk assessment in light COVID-19 and concluded that 

this now represents a significant ‘financial statements’ 

wide risk to the audit and as such have issued an 

addendum to this plan setting out our response in this 

area. This is included in the agenda papers.

We completed our interim audit in March 2020. The 

findings from our interim audit are summarised on 

pages 6 and 7 of this report. 

At the previous meeting we were not able to confirm 

the timing of the audit due to the pace of change in the 

sector.

We are now able to confirm that the audit will take 

place in September 2020 with the draft accounts 

expected by 31 July 2020. We will aim to complete 

some preliminary work in early August 2020 to give the 

Council time to provide some of the required evidence. 

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report 

and provide you with regular updates on progress 

during the audit.

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued 

by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors 

to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

We have undertaken our initial risk assessment against 

the NAO criteria and have identified financial 

sustainability as a significant risk. This was set out in our 

Audit Plan presented at the March 2020 committee 

meeting.

We will report the findings of our work in the Audit 

Findings Report.

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We certify the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim 

in accordance with procedures agreed with the Department for 

Work and Pensions. We are currently working with the Council 

to set up remote working in this area. Subject to getting the 

correct approvals in place we are planning to complete our 

initial testing in June 2020.

The deadline for this work remains 30 November, however we 

are aware that the DWP has written to Councils setting out that 

this date has been relaxed and that 31 January 2021 is an 

optional deadline.

Meetings

We continue to be in regular dialogue with Finance Officers as 

part of our periodical liaison meetings and continue to be in 

discussions with finance staff regarding emerging developments 

and to ensure the audit process is smooth and effective. 

Changes to reporting requirements and timetable

Since the previous meeting and as a result of Covid-19 there 

has been changes to the reporting deadlines for LG accounts. 

The revised time table is:

• draft accounts deadline to be moved from 30 May to 31 

August,

• audit deadline moved from 31 July to 30 November

• the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed to 1 April 

2021, councils should still disclose the expected impact of its 

initial application in their 2019/2020 statements. Given this is 

a developing situation, there may be further changes to the 

accounts process for 2019/20 and we will be in regular 

dialogue with the finance team as appropriate.

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2020

Public

Audit Deliverables

5

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2019/20. April 2019 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Governance Committee setting out our proposed 

approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements. A Covid-19 Audit Plan 

addendum will be presented to the June Committee.

March 2020 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We report to you the findings from our interim audit within this Progress Report. June 2020 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the Governance Committee. TBC Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion. TBC Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work. TBC Not yet due

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2020

Public

Results of Interim Audit Work

6

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment relevant to 

the preparation of the financial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.

Review of 

information 

technology controls

We performed a high level review of the general IT control environment, as part of 

the overall review of the internal controls system. 

IT (information technology) controls were observed to have been implemented in 

accordance with our documented understanding.

We have not yet finished our work in this area. Our work to date 

has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to adversely 

impact on the Council's financial statements. 

Walkthrough testing We have partially completed walkthrough tests of the Council’s controls operating 

in the areas where we consider that  there is a significant risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements. 

The key areas considered are Property, Plant and Equipment and the  Pensions 

Liability. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your 

attention at this stage. Internal controls reviewed to date have been implemented 

by the Council in accordance with our documented understanding. 

We have been having ongoing discussions with he finance team around the 

potential impact of COVID-19 in these areas.

To date our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact 

on our audit approach. 

Due to Property, Plant and Equipment and the Pension Liability 

being largely year end processes, we will complete our 

walkthroughs in these areas as part of the year end visit.

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2020

Public

Results of Interim Audit Work (cont.)

7

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council’s journal entry policies and procedures as part 
of determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not identified any 
material weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the Council's 
control environment or financial statements.

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.

Early substantive

testing

We have completed testing of months 1-9 transactions in the following areas:
- Operating expenditure, and
- Other revenues.

We have also completed a payroll substantive analytical review at month 9.

Our testing to date has identified any issues that we need to bring 

to your attention.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 9



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for North Devon District Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

External Audit Plan 

update
Year ending 31 March 2020

North Devon District Council

16 April 2020

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix A



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for North Devon District Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

2

Introduction & headlines

Purpose

This document provides an update to the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit of North Devon District Council (‘the Authority’) as reported in our Audit Plan dated 10 March 2020,

for those charged with governance.

The current environment

In addition to the audit risks communicated to those charged with governance in our Audit Plan on 10 March 2020, recent events have led us to update our planning risk assessment and 

reconsider our audit and value for money (VfM) approach to reflect the unprecedented global response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The significance of the situation cannot be underestimated 

and the implications for individuals, organisations and communities remains highly uncertain. For our public sector audited bodies, we appreciate the significant responsibility and burden 

your staff have to ensure vital public services are provided. As far we can, our aim is to work with you in these unprecedented times, ensuring up to date communication and flexibility where 

possible in our audit procedures.

Impact on our audit and VfM work

Management and those charged with governance are still required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the Code of Audit Practice, albeit

to an extended deadline for the preparation of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and the date for audited financials statements to 30 November 2020, however we will liaise with

management to agree appropriate timescales. We continue to be responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the Authority’s financial statements and VfM arrangements.

In order to fulfil our responsibilities under International Auditing Standards (ISA’s (UK)) we have revisited our planning risk assessment. We may also need to consider implementing changes to

the procedures we had planned and reported in our Audit Plan to reflect current restrictions to working practices, such as the application of technology to allow remote working. Additionally, it

has been confirmed since our Audit Plan was issued that the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed for the public sector until 2020/21.

Changes to our audit approach

To date we have:

- Identified a new significant financial statement risk, as described overleaf

- Reviewed the materiality levels we determined for the audit. We did not identify any changes to our materiality assessment as a result of the risk identified due to Covid-19.

Changes to our VfM approach

We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your arrangements to ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have not identified any

new VfM risks in relation to Covid-19.

Conclusion

We will ensure any further changes in our audit and VfM approach and procedures are communicated with management and reported in our Audit Findings Report. We wish to thank

management for their timely collaboration in this difficult time.

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix A



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for North Devon District Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

3

Significant risks identified – Covid – 19 pandemic

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid – 19 The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to unprecedented uncertainty for 

all organisations, requiring urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We 

expect current circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line duties may 

impact on the quality and timing of the production of the financial statements, and the 

evidence we can obtain through physical observation

- Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of assumptions 

applied by management to asset valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the 

reliability of evidence we can obtain to corroborate management estimates

- Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial forecasts supporting 

their going concern assessment and whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 

12 months from the anticipated date of approval of the audited financial statements have 

arisen; and 

- Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to reflect the 

unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the financial statements as at 

31 March 2020 in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a significant risk, which 

was one of the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-

19 pandemic has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements 

and update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach.

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-

ordinate practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they arise.

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements  in light of the 

Covid-19 pandemic.

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches can be 

obtained for the purposes of our audit whilst working remotely.

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate 

significant management estimates such as asset valuations, including investment 

properties and recovery of receivable balances.

• Evaluate management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts 

and the impact on management’s going concern assessment.

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our audit report if we have 

been unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Open 

 
 

 
 

NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Date:  9th June 2020 

TOPIC: AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 

REPORT BY: HEAD OF CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

 

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken to address internal and external audit recommendations. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee note the actions that have been taken to address identified risks since the 7th January Governance Committee 
meeting. 

 

2.2 That the Committee raises any areas of concern arising from the list of outstanding recommendations. 
 

3. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

3.1 To give assurance to the Committee that audit recommendations are being actively managed, and to give the Committee a full 
opportunity to review any areas of concern. 

 

4. Report 
 

4.1 SMT has reviewed the high and medium risk audit recommendations to assess progress and instigate any required actions. 
 

4.2 Since the last meeting the number of recommendations now tracked has remained at 1,199. 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 10



2 

 
 

Table A) Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers 
Code 
 

Title Status Progress High 
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low Risk 

15 DR Disaster Recovery 2015/16  Overdue 89% 0 6 0 

15 HN (CBL) Housing Needs (Choice Based Lettings) 2015/16  Overdue 80% 0 1 0 

16 BCM Business Continuity Management 2015/16  Overdue 93% 0 8 1 

16 PL Planning Applications 2015/16  In Progress 83% 0 3 0 

17 ITAM  IT Asset Management  2016/17  In Progress 87% 1 6 0 

17 RM & CG  Risk Management and Corporate Governance   Overdue 93% 0 3 1 

17 CS Cyber Security 2016/17  Overdue 85% 0 3 3 

17 SRR Security Review Report 2017/18  Overdue 95% 4 5 0 

17 L Licencing 2017/18  Overdue 75% 0 1 3 

17 G Grants 2017/18  In Progress 99% 0 2 5 

19 E&ES Email & Exchange Server 2018/19  Overdue 93% 0 3 1 

19 GDPR General Data Protection Regulations 2018/19  Overdue 92% 0 0 7 

19 CG & RM Corporate Governance & Risk Management 2018/19  Overdue 58% 0 2 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 10



3 

Table B: Audit recommendations setting completed since the last Audit Committee 
 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

 
17 PO 01 Review of processes 
and procedures. The Council 
should consider and review its 
parking operation 
processes and procedures and 
revise where needed to ensure 
that value for money is being 
achieved. 

 
 
The handheld technology has been fully implemented.   Processes and procedures are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis to ensure value for money is being achieved.  The National CEO handbook 
is waiting for the BPA to finalise it which has been stalled due to the current situation.  This 
action is therefore completed but the work will continue as it is always ongoing 

 

 
 
 
30-Sep-2019 

 
 
 
30-Apr-2020 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10



4 

Table C: Outstanding Audit Recommendations where Head of Service have requested a revision to the due date 

Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

15 DR 05 Undertake 
new Business Impact 
Assessment to ensure 
critial systems in DR 
Plan are correct. Include 
SMT in development of 
DR Plan + annual BIA 
conducted to ensure 
criticality of system in 
line with business need 

Disaster Recovery Procedures  
A new Business Impact Assessment (BIA) should be 
undertaken to ensure that the critical systems listed 
in the DR Plan are the correct ones.  
There should be input from other areas of the 
Council and from SMT in the development of a DR 
Plan to ensure that it meets the Council's needs.  
If possible, an annual BIA should be conducted to 
ensure that the criticality of the systems identified are 
in line with the business needs.  

 

26-May-2020 ICT have requested that 
Devon Audit Partnership work with the 
ICT Team / SMT to ensure the most 
appropriate DR solution is specified and 
delivered. 
 
The Business Continuity 
Recommendations have confirmed 
which services would be priority services 
for recovery in the event of a disaster. 
ICT await absolute confirmation that 
these are now the priorities. ICT will 
then review these and advise 
SMT/Governance what our currently 
recovery capabilities are and what 
further mitigation would be required to 
achieve these recovery points. This will 
require a revised back-up model either 
on-premise, in the cloud or a hybrid 
approach. ICT will also consider 
Disaster Recovery as a Service 
(DRaaS) which would also provide x2 
DR Test Plans a year. ICT also have an 
approved Cyber Incident Response 
Plan. 
 
Request revised due date: 31st 
December 2020 

12-Oct-2015 31-Mar-2020 

15 DR 06 Test DR Plan 
annually. Test reports 
documented with 
lessons learn & 
incorporated in DR Plan. 
SMT be informed for DR 
test results to inform 
their decision making 

DR Plan Test  
The DR Plan should be tested annually.  
DR test reports should be documented with lessons 
learned incorporated into the DR Plan.  
Senior Management should be informed of DR test 
results and reports in order to inform their decision 
making.  

 

26-May-2020 This recommendation is 
linked with 15 DR 05 and our DR 
solution would need to be put in place 
first in order for the test to be carried 
out. That said COVID-19 has certainly 
tested the ICT Team’s ability to deliver 
during a disaster. 
 

31-Dec-2015 31-Mar-2020 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 10



5 

Request revised due date: 31st March 
2021 

16 BCM 07 Testing 
Strategy 

A testing strategy should be documented and 
included as an Appendix within the Business 
Continuity Management Policy. The strategy should 
include:  
.         Frequency of testing  
.         Type of testing  
.         People to involve in testing  
.         Output of the testing  
.         Production of action plans Reporting 
mechanism of test results.  

 

26-May-2020 In light of unprecedented 
situation with Covid-19, progress in 
terms of Business Continuity has been 
hampered, albeit the Council now has a 
significantly greater awareness of the 
areas which require further work. 
Moreover, the prevalence of home-
working within the organisation resulting 
from Covid-19 controls and increased 
social distancing, have meant that the 
risks to the organisation have changed 
and threats surrounding cyber-attacks 
have increased. This has resulted in 
updates being required to the current 
arrangements (they were recently 
updated in March 2020 as a result of the 
announcements surrounding Covid-19, 
albeit they now require further 
amendment).The proposal in moving 
forward is to now:1.       Establish a 
baseline/carry out a gap analysis 
against a recognised standard e.g. 
ISO22301.2.       Develop a risk based 
project plan to address key areas of 
weakness.3.       Develop a top level 
overview of NDC’s critical areas, and for 
each of these areas carry out a 
Business Impact Assessment, and a 
Service Resumption Plan where 
appropriate.4.       Align Business 
Continuity Plans with other risk 
disciplines, such as information security 
and IT.5.       Implement an annual 
review and testing schedule.In light of 
the continued pressures on the 
organisation in terms of its response and 
recovery to Covid-19, we must be 
realistic in terms of the time-scale for the 
above piece of work, which is extensive 
and will require collaboration across the 

30-Jul-2016 30-Apr-2020 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 10



6 

whole Council.A time-scale for those 
areas listed at 1, and 2 is proposed: 1 
June 2021.For those areas listed at 
points 3, and 4: a date of 1 January 
2022 is proposedTo implement point 5:  
June 2022 is proposed.As such, the 
overall date for completion of 16 BCM 
07 is proposed as 1 June 2022. This is 
due to the extensiveness of this project. 
There is no longer a requirement solely 
for testing, there is now also a 
requirement to update plans etc., prior to 
testing them. Time-scales reflect the fact 
that resources are currently being 
utilised to fulfil the Council’s obligations 
in terms of its response and recovery to 
Covid -19 and work aligned to Civil 
Contingencies. It is proposed that 
updates are provided on Pentana in 
terms of the fulfilment of those points 
outlined at 1-5.Request revised due 
date: 1 June 2022 

17 CS 02 Network 
Security 

Management should ensure that a formal Firewall 
Rules review schedule is developed and 
implemented. Reviews for existing firewall rules 
should be done on annual basis as a minimum. 
Formal training on the management of the firewalls 
should also be considered for at least 2 members of 
staff to ensure continuity of service in the event that 
the Senior Technical Analyst is absent for an 
extended period of time. 
Consideration should also be given to implementing 
a firewall at the Disaster Recovery site at Lynton 
House to ensure that the services, however limited, 
can be fully utilised with as minimal risk possible in 
the event of a disaster or loss of the main data centre 
at Brynsworthy. 

 

26-May-2020 The whole suite of 
firewalls run out of support during 
2020/21 and this recommendation will 
be addressed as part of their 
replacement and how we plan to 
respond to our Disaster Recovery Audit 
Recommendations. 
 
Request revised due date: 31st 
December 2020 

30-Apr-2018 31-Mar-2020 

17 RM&CG 02 
Completeness of 
Service Risk Registers 

Heads of Service should ensure all service risk 
registers have identified, assessed and scored all 
risks, with risk owners identified. Any mitigating 
controls, present or planned, should also be noted in 
each risk register.  

 

Majority of service areas have now 

reviewed and updated service risk 

assessments in February 2020. Those 

outstanding were due by end March 

30-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2020 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 10



7 

2020 but this has been delayed due to 

the Covid 19 crisis. 

Request revised due date: 30th June 

2020 
 
 

17 SRR 08 Information 
Sharing 

The Council should ensure that the Customer Record 
Management system is fit for purpose and is 
accessible by all staff dealing with the Council’s 
service users, especially those with violence 
markers. As the reporting, recording and maintaining 
of information on incidents will always be user 
dependant, it is vital that all users are trained up and 
encouraged to make use of and update the CRM 
system regularly. 
The Council should also consider a regular group 
email updating users on both incidents and markers. 

 

26-May-2020 The forms have been built 
for this and will be completed once the 
active directory is in place which will 
enable an automated process which will 
update staff roles. 
 
Requested revised due date: 31 July 
2020 

30-Jun-2018 31-Mar-2020 

 
 
 
 
 

Table D: Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
 

Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original 
Due Date 

Due Date 

NIL      

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 10



Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2020 Reports                                                                                                           

 

5. Progress tracking of Annual Governance Statement 
 

5.1 An annual review of NDC’s governance arrangements leads to the Annual Governance 
Statement, which forms part of the Statement of Accounts.  

 
5.2 In addition to any other issues the review captures recommendations from external and 

internal audit and inspections and sets out an action plan. This plan is tracked through 
Covalent.  

 

2013/14 AGS action plan is 93 % complete 

 
6. Constitution Context  
 

Appendix and 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

5.5 Delegated 
 

7. Statement of Internal Advice 
 
7.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate Councillors 

and officers. 
 

 
Author: Sarah Higgins     Date: 27th May 2020 
Reference: Audit Recommendation Report May 2020 V1.0 
 

. 

 
 

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2020 Reports                                                                                                           

Table E: Annual Governance Statement 
 

Code Description Status Progress Bar Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

14 AGS 02 
Review & update the 
IT Disaster Recovery 
Plan 

 Overdue  

Extension of Time Request extended to 
31st March 2020 approved by 
Governance Committee 11th June 2019. 
The Business Continuity 
Recommendations have last month (April 
19) confirmed which services they have 
established are priority services for 
recovery. ICT await absolute confirmation 
that these are now the priorities. ICT will 
then review these and advise 
SMT/Governance what our currently 
recovery capabilities are and what further 
mitigation would be required to achieve 
these recovery points. This will require a 
revised back-up model either on-premise, 
in the cloud or a hybrid approach. ICT will 
also consider Disaster Recovery as a 
Service (DRaaS) which would also 
provide x2 DR Test Plans a year. ICT 
also have an approved Cyber Incident 
Response Plan. 

31-Mar-2015 31-Mar-2020 

 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Governance Committee Work Programme 2020/21 

This work programme provides structure for the Audit Committee to ensure it receives reports and updates at the 

appropriate meetings throughout the year. It is reviewed and updated at each committee meeting.  

 
 

Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 

North Devon Council items 
 

      

Review of the Committee’s Terms of 
Reference 

      

Annual Review of the Committee’s 
effectiveness (JT) 
 

      

Half Yearly Report from the Chair of 
the Governance Committee (KJ). 
 

  Sept each year   March each year 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
 

      

Statement of Accounts 
 

      

Letter of Representation (JT) 
 

      

 
Compensation payments made under 
delegated powers. (Claire H) 
 

      

 
Corporate Risk Register (SH) 
 

      

Major changes to Accounting Policies 
Management procedures to be 
reported by the Head of Resources 

      

 
Update on Governance Arrangements  

      

 
21:21 Phase 2 Report (KM) 

      

 
Update on Business Continuity 
 

      

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 11



 
 

Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 

Internal Auditor items 
 

      

Internal Audit Annual report 
 

      

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 
 

      

Internal Audit Charter 
 

      

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

      

External Auditor items 
 

      

External Audit - Fee Letter 
 

      

External Audit - Findings Report 
 

      

External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 
 

      

External Audit - Plan 
 

      

Certification Work Report 
 

      

External Audit - Progress Report 
and Sector Update 

      

Standing Items 
 

      

Audit Recommendation Tracker 
 

      

Work Programme 
 

      

 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 11


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10th March 2020.
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report
	8 Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20
	9 External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	North Devon DC Audit Plan Addendum Covid19 16-04-20

	10 Audit Recommendation Tracker
	11 Governance Work Programme 2020 - 21

